

(a6)

(22)

Hair down & got an  
album to hold  
get

Alice Springs  
5th June 1896

My dear Spencer and family

Since my last letter poor  
little Bill developed typhoid &  
was confined to bed for over  
a fortnight & delirious for some  
days, he is now about again  
looking very pale, thin, weak.

He had a most anxious time  
& I was afraid at one time that  
we were going to lose him.

From the fact that you contemplate  
leaving Mr Spencer home for a  
trip I am afraid his illness has  
left her in a weakened condition.  
The trip home should set her  
up thoroughly & I hope it  
will be decided too much

I presume go with her - You  
could not do better than  
leave mostly old Melbourne  
during her absence & I was  
heartily glad to learn that  
you would be able to put  
in at least a month with  
us, now I have been thinking  
a great deal about the proposed  
trip & first of all I must  
tell you that my going out  
to the Geo Gip range is quite  
out of the question, it is  
entirely out of my beat being  
so far out off the Telegraph  
line, had you proposed merely  
a flying visit, I might have  
managed it, but of course  
I realize that a trip of  
that sort would not give

on the Horn expedition  
mentioning that you would require  
the camels for twelve weeks  
that you would have to pay  
10/- per head per week. This  
is the highest figure charged,  
the whole trip, including talions  
<sup>traps</sup>, would not cost you more  
than £60, & charge of collecting  
material, however, would  
not be out of the way for  
a short month's expences. You  
would be able to travel in  
comfort, camp just where you  
thought fit, have ample means  
of carrying your collection,  
& above all, be entirely  
independent of seasons. If  
you came by mail you could  
not do any collecting on route.

You different time for collecting,  
after careful consideration I  
find for many the best plan  
would be for you to hire  
say four Camels & leading to  
an Afghan, for the traps, the  
Camels etc would cost you not  
more than 10/- per head each,  
including saddle, & the mans wages  
would not be more than £  
or 25/- per head, you could  
bring back with you the collecting  
boxes, traps etc, & there would  
be no need to bring or send  
on horses as you could purchase  
everything at that particular  
route, if you adopt this plan  
I would suggest that you  
borrow the traps of the  
Camel boxes which were made

The amount of material you could carry would be limited by me & I could of course manage to get you from the head of the lake to here but on many grounds I think the Camel plan is the best, there would be no risks of baggage breaking down & you could depend upon a successful trip - if you decide to go for the Camels I would suggest that you proceed first of all to the Guel Range & after finishing there come on here where you must spend at least a month. The wet season begins in November & if you left soon by the mail however

October 30<sup>th</sup> you would <sup>be</sup> at  
the Guel Range before the end  
of November, or if you came  
on horse by mail, you would  
reach here on the 10<sup>th</sup> of  
November or if Before I had  
brought you through, about  
the 20<sup>th</sup>. I could of course  
take you from here to  
the Mission Station - I would  
like you to go to the Guel  
Range first because it will  
give me more time to  
pick up anthropological  
bits & anything you learnt  
out there could be discussed  
between us here - think the  
whole matter over & let me  
know what you decide upon  
to see that I shall be only

too glad to help you in  
any way that I can - if  
you decided upon Cams  
you should get Winnicott  
to engage them some time  
before, the facts tho' regarding  
Cams would be complete.

I knew that you would be  
delighted to hear that the  
C.W. carriage cars now extend  
so far north but why do  
you call it the Piramigana  
system? I don't think it  
has anything to do with  
Piramigana & the latter system  
certainly does not extend  
here though it really exists  
at C.W. & Crown Point &  
at the latter place I have  
since discovered that it is

far more common than I  
supposed. By his to the  
Mission Station brought few  
very little, I had several  
Lurulcha men on the grid  
during my four days stay  
over & they doubt as to the  
existence of a class system  
amongst them was strengthened  
they have totems just as  
the Arunta have & they have  
Churinga, both Stone & wood,  
but all my questioning  
failed to elicit a particle  
of evidence as to the ~~existence~~  
of a class system & they  
pointed in saying that  
the totems had nothing to  
do with marriage. They  
marry among those of the  
Lurulcha who live close to

Arunta to mix with them  
adopt the class names  
but the proper Laritcha  
of Denpe Porrung Nortward  
have not even got a name  
for them & here, they appear  
to me to live in small  
groups & their weapons etc  
are of a more primitive  
type than those of the Arunta  
they are called Laritcha  
by the Arunta but they  
never speak of themselves  
as belonging being Laritcha,  
while the Arunta men always  
describe themselves as Arunta.  
the Missionary blacks many of  
whom speak good English &  
understand the Laritcha language  
work up on their neighbour's mob

X. Mr man ~~has~~ is  
married to a woman  
who is tribally speaking  
Mumba to him.

With contempt, in reading these  
enquiries I had the assistance of  
the Reddall Shiklon who speaks  
the Amura language of the tribe  
very well - the Mission Station is  
not a good field for the  
anthropologist, everything possible  
has been, has being done, to blot  
out old customs, corrobories are  
not permitted in the locality  
& the rising generation are not  
permitted to attend them, marriages  
between the forbidden degrees of  
relationship are celebrated by  
the clergyman & in all cases  
two alone together & then to whom  
Mura to each other are to be  
seen hobnobbing - This is of course  
only amongst the people who  
have grown up upon the Station  
& the one encampment but But & now due to one end & then

who have for the last 18 or 19  
years been under missionary influence  
there are a number of Christians  
there, & many - married couples - One  
of my slave Christian volunteers told me  
information that "my father & good  
Lord Jesus dwells in my  
bones" & I dropped him like a  
hot potato & - a them they  
don't know any thing about Christianity  
They know less about their own  
habits & customs, many of the  
young men have never seen a  
Corroboree - if ever niggers in  
this world were being systematically  
degraded, that is hardly the word,  
I should say debauched, these people  
are, what or earth will become of  
them if the mission stations is  
ever closed, as is most likely

if it does not become less supporting  
very few of the mission stations  
now could get them working  
with present bombing - The  
missionaries feed about two people  
regularly, flour & beef ad lib, whether  
they need or not. I visited the  
Plan of Palms & got some precious  
copies of which I am sending  
you - if you think the Australasian  
people would like to publish  
the Palm tree picture ~~it~~ with leaf  
let them have your copies & I  
will send you another set.  
I could not get any Anthropol.  
pictures without offending the  
missionaries sense of propriety  
so I confined myself to the  
"infinitely respectable" as opposed  
to "the altogether" -

part in the Yerapura are decorated  
much the same as in other  
Yerapura & do not carry anything  
in their hands - Pictures marked  
Aulechantechanticana, boys decorated.  
When boys arrive at a certain  
age - all hands, men & women,  
collect at the Corroboree ground.  
The boys are seized one after  
another & thrown in the air,  
being caught by the men, while  
this is being done the women  
sing & shout & the boys are  
then taken to the Linguaia and  
& painted ~~on~~ by their Umlurna  
the men to whom their  
Mothers are Tualeha mark  
a month or two after this  
the boys are told that they  
must no longer sleep in the

their mothers camps, they  
must live principally with  
the men at the Anganja  
and they must not play  
with women or girls. The  
three bags shown in picture  
are of different totems -  
Am not sending Sterling any  
of these pictures - by the way  
he did not make one last  
mail. This is the first time he  
has missed a mail since he  
left here. I rec'd a wire from  
him two or three weeks ago  
asking for information about  
some trivial matters & I conclude  
from this that he is still  
hammering away at his article.  
Of course I know that he won't  
like you & I working together but

that doesn't matter. The ~~Dear~~ 5, there  
is no reason why I should work  
with him, now at all, & there are  
a thousand why I should work  
with you - one being that without  
you I couldn't get on at all!  
I certainly would not have worked  
with him under any circumstances  
although I like him personally, he is  
a real good fellow in heaps of  
ways, but his forte is not  
anthropology, as angeled so far  
as the science applied to these  
origines. I have the last idea  
that Stirling is doing with my  
help, the understanding was that  
he would furnish me with proofs  
in writing, he simply said that  
he had written out my notes &  
with you would add anything

you hand necessary & above all  
I hope you would correct  
errors or at any rate tone them  
down so that they may not look  
too glaring, with the information  
now in your possession I think  
you could do this in your  
editorial capacity? if he had  
sent me the proofs as originally  
arranged I could have corrected  
the errors myself but now I would  
prefer you doing so, because you  
will know better than I how much  
to say & how much to leave unaid  
his account of the Churingas is  
just what he learnt from me  
nothing more or less - Cowle knows  
nothing about the Churingas as to laws  
but there is no reason in the world  
why he should not learn if he likes

(7)

(22).

The house; what I have learnt has been gained by short hard graft & the intercession of a patience which no man who writes me, would believe me capable of. You need not fear that I shall say too much upon this subject to anyone, I am now almost as numerous as oysters on the quay masters - my German friend is however passing about in Tenants and Credit, which is very far away improved with the reefs in that locality - I will bear well in mind what you say about Peulonic girls - to return to the stolen question I agree with you that we have not got to the bottom of it yet but every month adds something to our knowledge - & by the time you get here I think there will be very little

(1)

To learn now that subject - work all  
you have on the ground, for a  
month, to come I think; eliminate  
all errors, clear up many mysteries,  
& add much to our store of knowledge  
(your idea of dedicating the book  
to Horatt Tison is splendid, by  
all means do so). You speak of  
going over my notes with them;  
let me know what they think of  
the information contained therein.  
I am not such an ass as to treat  
lightly any opinion of yours with  
regard to Aboriginal matters, you  
seem to have an intuitive idea of  
what they should, & what they shouldn't do;  
but if it turns out that any of these  
hopes are a message stuck in the  
sense in which you interpret them  
then you can write me down an ass.

I will go further than this & say  
once for all that I don't believe  
in the message placed in any  
of the Australian books - it is a  
in my opinion purely a travellers  
tale arising from want of knowledge.  
although holding such strong  
opinions I shall not cease hunting  
for the mythical bird, & if I  
should discover it, here or elsewhere,  
you can bet your professional tools  
that I shall own up without a  
moments hesitation, I fully recognising  
the importance of absolute exactness  
in these matters & I am not  
ashamed to own up when I fail  
into error (even politically which  
rarely if ever happens!) note also  
I think of it the messenger conveying  
medals to see jaguar caravans in addition

to the tail (since feathers) a hollow bone  
bone calidura in the end of which is  
black some <sup>topas</sup> feathers cacatua rosy topaz  
don't know scientific name - this  
referred to the quotation from  
your narrative I think it is right  
except in one two trifling instances  
I would strike out the word elpona  
as these people are not generally  
spoken of as elpona which in my  
opinion only signifies a slight  
difference in language - elpona or alpona  
they say applies to other groups  
whose language is not quite like that  
of the majority of Auranta you  
say a man going from here to  
Charlotte Waters is looked upon as a  
guest far tuoh is allowed certain  
privileges what do you mean by  
the concluding words? I don't know

of savages who do not share my views  
hunting after landing also prominent.  
I do not think upon spaces visited  
there is not a particle of evidence  
to show that any such country (!)  
has ever been established to have  
power this country though it would  
would occur when the Government  
ruled there, during an initiation  
Ceremony for instance the King  
(from here) would be regarded as  
either a guest or visit from another.  
There is no doubt in my mind  
about these people having an clear  
idea of the ownership of certain  
tracts of land - about the Urapuna  
I cannot express any opinion  
but this like other matters will have  
to be cleared up ere long -  
could not get a shot at the country

only woman doctor I know ~~of~~ in the Country, she was away attending the sheep camp when I was at the Mission Station. I did not find her out until it was too late to catch her - there is a woman, still here, about twelve months ago, was called upon to attend my old friend's brother who was then very ill & since dead (I am waiting anxiously to photograph his Corpse) I have since learnt that there was a woman Doctor amongst these people many years ago & she is long since dead - It must often happen occasionally, perhaps at long intervals, that a woman ~~of~~ with more spirit than the general run of her sex has the courage to proclaim herself a Rabbischa & the others are so superstitious that they

dare not a doubt other women are just  
supposed to be the same thing) though  
~~not~~ this privilege is not extended to  
them so often as to the men and

6<sup>m</sup> Martin arrived from Tempe (Powers)  
this morning on a visit. I have had  
him hunting for a class captain  
amongst the Luricha since before last  
Christmas. They have bombarded him with  
letters by every opportunity he can  
find no place of a captain  
to everything he tells me bears out what  
I learnt from Luricha at the Mission  
Station, he tells me the Indians are  
more together here, there is no such  
shunning of particular women such it  
as he has noticed here and elsewhere.  
When Contra was here last I asked with  
him particularly to enquire as to whether  
whether two of the same totem could

marry with his wife or me yes but this is  
loosen (cohabitation he calls it) has nothing  
to do with marriage & he will be  
here on Tuesday to attend the next  
Court on a case in which he is  
officially interested, when I hope to get  
fuller information. If these  
people have any system of any sort  
I consider themselves of no account  
why they should take such pains  
to conceal the fact. Martin has  
verified one case - when I mentioned on  
a previous letter - of my brother & sister  
in blood living together & so far  
as he could learn nothing was done  
to punish them - four (watchmen  
questioned separately at the Mission  
Station) said they could not find any  
woman as wife so long as she did  
not belong to another man - I am

(9)

(22)

am strongly tempted to make a short flying visit to Europe myself, and the prints you sent me are splendidly done, & those done in the Melbourne appear to be as good as the English. I have had the full record of the corroborated heads framed, the Negros here are delighted with them. Is it by the papers that the Chief Secretary informed the Geographical Society that Nameless map & journal would be published as a Parliamentary paper. I don't think there is the least fear of his publishing your specimens, he is as crookedly as the devil but as straight as a gun barrel. I am glad you are getting pictures & turning out well & I think the old glow of Nameless practice is tho' w

(P)

beautiful photograph I have ever  
seen, that big camera of yours  
is a beauty whom that the  
Court are undertaking the publication  
of Minnesota journal. I don't think  
there is much fear of his  
indulging more personalities, they  
would hardly permit anything  
of that sort. I do hope the old  
Savagewill get his F.R.S. He is  
an old man & if he misses it now  
may never have another opportunity  
your turn should come when the  
whole of the Horn Volume are issued  
I hope it will, I should feel a  
considerable amount of reflected glory  
in being associated with an F.R.S.  
etc. I hope you will not be  
disappointed with this mail's budget  
but little as it appears it represents

a great deal of so-called "hardwood graft".  
Your questions invariably lead to a  
fresh matter. You will see, that except  
I have, as usual, to correct a few  
number of errors & thoriat to find  
out their book mention "Wilyam"  
as "the blood flowing after circumcision"  
amongst people. I must add the Hindi - I have  
been on the hearing of "Wilyam"  
for the last twelve months. The  
Custom extends as far north as all  
Balkhur & there was apparently stops,  
& has nothing whatever to do with  
circumcision amongst the tribes of  
Arunia or "Ura punna" but is  
a ceremony which makes those  
who are initiated incapable of  
travelling by night in spirit  
from & also endows them with  
other magical powers. I have always

up

a description of the ceremony part  
of which I witnessed at Macumba  
years ago, but I have not so far  
quite worked the thing out, yet  
men are generally nearly middle  
aged before they are made Wilyan  
I fancy the custom is the  
same as that mentioned by Sturt  
& Fison? but their information on  
the subject has been faulty -  
Wilyan are debarred from eating  
certain food, I think at Macumba  
it is Kangaroo & in great spirit to  
form they are supposed to possess  
the swiftness of the Eagle hawk.  
I note what you say about the  
old women I have already begun  
the attack in diplomatic style. I  
doubt very much whether they know  
anything about the Chevninga names

although your opinion to the  
contrary impression we all are and  
looking forward very much to  
your visit here. There are a thousand  
& one things that we can clear  
up when we get together but  
you must continue the questions,  
without them I should be at a stand.  
This is going to be a great book  
of ours, there is not the slightest  
doubt about it! Many thanks for  
the Boland Geology volume I intend  
to read the geology after the main  
parts - do you ever hear from Watt  
there is but if you are writing  
him please convey my remembrances  
that makes all him we shall  
be delighted to see him again when  
he returns to the Colonies now that  
Sterling is free from Hospital work.

it would not surprise me to wait to  
hear of his coming up in honor of  
for a day or some days (I think)  
he would much like to come over  
again. He told me about (Last)  
that he would do so if he  
got a chance - Scott returned  
from Adelie & Melbourne today  
after a long holiday, he did not tell  
me anything of Stirling in detail.  
This is fortunate as he had speak  
with him and intelligent boy from  
whom Prof Dr Wright will have extracted  
a lot of information. I am now  
eagerly waiting to see the Anthrop.  
Volume & am particularly anxious  
to see what Stirling has made of  
the subject. I am also anxious to  
know how he has treated my  
notes - I have tried my hand at it

(22)

Lantern slide making with fair  
 success the mistake I made was  
 in overdeveloping thereby making the  
 picture too dark all my lantern  
 entertainments are greatly appreciated  
 by the Negroes some of the heads  
 come out splendidly - how I  
 must stop & drop a line to one or  
 two others my very kind regards  
 to Mr Spencer Moore to the little ones  
 dont graft too hard. Clean the

Yours sincerely  
 H. Fischer

As

I should write to all friends this mail if  
 you see him tell him that I am trying  
 to get the bird which is supposed  
 to have laid the egg he returned to me

Dep

I am going to visit & photograph  
the spot 15 miles South West of  
here where the ceremonies used to  
be performed & hope to collect some  
interesting information before my  
mail. Somewhere in the Burd district  
there is an Aracoutla totem to  
which a ~~number~~ <sup>few</sup> of men whom  
I am recently belong. There are  
simply hundreds of totems in this  
tribe & I doubt whether any one  
of them number more than 50  
men <sup>(more loosely)</sup> & some not half a dozen.  
The fire (Oora) totem East of  
Undoolya is confined to no small  
body the son of an Undoolya  
all the people of that totem  
in that district having died.  
There a totem circle is situated  
in good well watered country about

numbers are correspondingly large  
- but next there is a powerful  
fire group & it is on hot nights  
fire can be seen springing from  
the Churinga in their Ultatulunga  
it was a fancy a garbled account  
of this fire totem that led  
Wallace & Landsborough the explorer  
to Maragle people with an account  
of the existence of a volcano  
in the Western McDonells!  
all these totems have their  
peculiar ceremonies - by the way  
in the Eastern McDonells there  
is a fly (Anoonga ordinary fly)  
totem the Churinga of which is  
said to cure bunged eyes -  
I am sending the usual collection  
of vermin, the lizards are I  
find the first of the sort you

have had from this country &  
they were about 30 miles  
part. I hope they will prove to be  
new. I told you about these liquid  
when you were here & tried very hard  
to get some. When the mail arrived  
I had 3 whole cats in spouts & after  
learning from your letter that the  
species was known I threw them out,  
in fire manacles the whole staff were  
up in arms, I diverted their attention  
from the front of my office by  
begging him to distract Squires  
soon to get the suggestion to smuggle  
them away, those awful cats! I shall  
never forget them, they seemed quite  
happy until I turned them up, truly  
the nose of a biologist must be of  
especially small proportions - the collecting  
knives & prints arrived safely Slope

to return the former in a few  
months failed to the train over  
Baron Semian's Creek beasts - I  
shall leave here for the north  
shortly after the departure of the  
next mail for Adelaid. It shall be  
away about five or six weeks -  
In addition to the ceremonial  
Achuppa practices. You will find  
some prints marked Indroddetta  
Quapara. This is a new Quapara  
it is remarkable in that it is  
the only dancing Quapara in which  
I have ever noticed  
anything indecent, The two men  
shown in photograph carrying  
imitation John Thomas' dance  
before their mixed audience in  
the attitude in which they were  
photographed - The other men taking

old habits & customs of the Indians  
They are too busily engaged in  
Stamping out what remains of the  
old customs, but they have promised  
me that they will not give any  
information they may get hold of  
to any one else. I am on excellent  
terms with them. They promised  
this very readily - probably I shall  
make a flying visit there on a  
week or two. There are one or two  
things I neglected to inquire about  
particularly about the ~~Maribas~~ quirila  
of i.e. Baby totem which exists  
there, there is also here a <sup>similar</sup> totem or rather  
was many years ago, but all  
who belonged to it are dead &  
the ceremonies attached to it viz  
making the babies enter into the  
women clan were performed by  
any man who is conversant with the ceremony

accord to get up a man. I  
am now in a position to state with  
positivity that a widow belongs by all  
right to the wife<sup>es</sup> of a dead  
man if he chooses to take her,  
if not he has the disposal  
of her. There seems to be a  
objection to taking the wife of a dead  
man Ochilya (or blood) sister  
she has children, it has taken  
a long time to get at the truth  
in this very simple matter.  
Chastity is thickly imposed upon  
the woman and after the  
performance of Repudiation they  
lay widows very frequently run  
away to avoid marriage with  
their husband's brother. The  
missionaries are not likely to find  
out much with regard to them  
and their customs in this way.

it this I am a little doubtful about & think we shall find  
everywhere one class & there is coming the Bulbana & Tigray as one -  
predominating in every totem though not to the same extent as here -

No apparent relation to the former +

There must have <sup>been</sup> a time when the ~~totems~~  
~~totems~~ influenced the marriage laws

but I cannot discover, so far, a  
vestige of the existence of anything

of the sort now, it is quite  
probable as you say that we shall

find some ~~totem~~ restrictions only

regard to marriage amongst the ~~totem~~  
Southern people & for that &  
other reasons I am getting up

a man from the Charlotte who  
has had a lot of friendly intercourse

with the Urapunia & I am also  
trying to arrange to get an

Urapunia man from Odadatta (1.)  
there is constantly a series love

in the table of relationships of

that tribe I have tried unsuccessfully  
to clear it up by Telegraph (2.)

and make an appeal to Tindala sufficient and a mail will be sent to you giving additional information in regard to the Totems over 22 pages.

In my last mails notes where I wrote "out west where the Totems are common to all classes" I was referring to the Northern Arunta & not to the Luritcha as you appear to think - by the way I found Coomoorra Manuringata at the Alyawarr Station. I think your gradation not yours to be correct viz

(1) Luritcha no classes but Totems

(2) Classes to which certain Totems

are restricted - in the Southern Arunta (this needs enquiring into & I hope by next mail to be in a position to decide the matter definitely)

(3) Classes & Totems but the latter as a whole but with numerous exceptions confined to certain classes as now really exists still in the McDonells

(4) Classes & Totems with the latter having